Goddard Unified Enterprise Services and Technology (GUEST) Request for Proposal (RFP) Questions and Comments
With Government Responses
Volume II

General:
Numerous questions were submitted requesting an extension for the proposal submission date.  The Government has released Amendment One on September 12, 2008, which extended the proposal submission due date to October 9, 2009 (2:00PM EST).

Clarification to QUESTION 4 posted September 12, 2008:

Question 4: Section L, Page 104, BOE

The requirements for the BOE in this section appear inconsistent with the 2 pages per RTO which is stated on page 89 Price Volume paragraph (b) and clarified by the answer to Question 98.

Since these BOEs will provide much of the insight to the cost realism, we suggest that the limit be clarified as 2 pages per WBS element at level 3.

RESPONSE:

The BOE response is limited to thirty (30) pages under the Price Volume among the four (4) RTOs.  The Offeror shall use up to 30 pages to discuss the BOE only and shall determine the page allocation for each RTO.

Questions and Responses
QUESTION 1 “Enterprise System Administration,”

Question: What system do they currenty use?  How much of it is custom scripts for SNMP traps?  What sort of things are they currently set to monitor and what are the alarm thresholds?

RESPONSE:  

There is not a system that is used for enterprise systems administration. System Administration is accomplished using the tools provided by the vendors of the operating systems and best practices. The specific nature of the last two questions can not be answered without providing the offerors with detailed requirements. In this RFP, the government has specified its objectives that need to be met.

QUESTION 2 “Enterprise System Hosting,”

“Provide full service hosting support for the GSFC Data Center.”

Question: GSFC mentioned that the DC is in Building 18.  Does this statement imply it may move or simply that the offeror needs to provide the full set of application and infrastructure mgmt staff (server admins, network admins, storage admins, etc?

RESPONSE: 

Mentioning that the domain controller (DC) is located in Building 18 does not imply any of the above stated. It was only mentioned to give Offeror a sense of geography of the NASA Goddard Space Flight and how services are provided to a vast campus.

QUESTION 3 “Enterprise Data Center Services,”

Question: Assume this is a case-by-case basis.  Can GSFC provide a summary of any projected new projects that will impact the services (i.e. new capacity need for servers, storage, bandwidth)?  CIO mentioned

RESPONSE: The Government cannot provide a summary of new projects that will impact the services.  Offerors shall identify the capability to be flexible to capture increase requirements under IDIQ contract.
QUESTION 4 “Enterprise Data Center Services,”

Ensure system designs are interoperable with the enterprise architecture and other enterprise applications. 


Question: CIO mentioned that GSFC EA is not complete.  Should vendors assume the offeror should provide resources to build this?  Is there a logical reference for any SOI?

RESPONSE: 
Any services or resources the offerors wish to provide in their proposal that contributes toward meeting the objectives specified in the RFP are welcomed.

QUESTION 5 “Enterprise Test Environment,”

Question: This implies there is not a test environment.  Is there?  How closely does it match production?  What sort of validation or system testing is required (i.e. is there a NIST standard or is it dependent on the application and program)?  Section 12 may answer this.

RESPONSE: 
Nothing is implied by the statement. Only our objectives and outcomes imply that an enterprise test environment should be in place. A test environment does exist. However, it is up to the Offeror to determine whether the test environment meets our enterprise services objectives. 
QUESTION 6 “Systems / Services Monitoring and Maintenance,”

Question: What tools does GSFC currently use for this?

RESPONSE:

The current incumbent using a combination of vendor provided tools and industry best practices to accomplish this service. 
QUESTION 7 “Enterprise Database Administration Services,”


Any security issues for us with this?  What are the clearance and citizenship requirements for working on GUEST?

RESPONSE: The security requirements are set forth in Attachment E to the contract and citizenship requirements are designated in Attachment F.
QUESTION 8 “Data Backup and Storage,”

Question: Can we get logical and physical diagrams of the environment?  How much SAN?  Is there any NAS?  How much DAS?  Is there a mainframe?

What is the primary storage platform?  Is there any secondary storage?  Archive storage?

What is the BU software?  How many instances?  Any current issues with BUs (windows, ability to restore)? Has NASA done DR testing and was it successful?

What is the tape system (library, drives, tapes)?

RESPONSE: This information can be found in the Industry Day presentation entitled “GUEST Pre-Solicitation Conference Presentation”
QUESTION 9 “Continuity of Operations,”

Question: Does GSFC have a DR/COOP site?  How often is it tested?  What are the perceived gaps?

RESPONSE:
All Federal Agencies by law are required to meet the terms of HSPD-20 which governs Continuity of Operations Planning. The offerors should ensure that their proposals for the services in our objectives encompass the full the life cycle of operations which should include continuity of operations. 
QUESTION 10 “Configuration Management,”

Question: This implies there is no CMDB?  We could use Remedy Asset Mgmt but it’s not a full CMDB. What is the perceived integrity of any CMDB/asset mgmt system that GSFC has?

RESPONSE: NASA/GSFC expects the Offeror to propose a solution that meets the objectives stated for this area. Nothing should be implied about the existence of a Configuration Management Data Base. The Offeror should use their judgment and expertise about which services and capabilities they will apply to meet the objectives. 

QUESTION 11 “Enterprise Back-Office Services,”

Question: I could not find definition for back-office services.  Are they defined somewhere?

RESPONSE: Enterprise Back-Office Services include…Email and Exchange, DNS, IP Address Management, & Directory Services 

QUESTION 12 “Enterprise Back-Office Services,”

“Provide centralized Back-Office Services that focus on infrastructure systems supporting office automation and collaborative services.”


Question: Is there a pre-defined set of applications currently in place to support office automation?

RESPONSE: Yes, there is an existing set of applications in place to support office automation services. However, there is not a pre-defined set of applications.
Enterprise Back-Office Services include…Email and Exchange, DNS, IP Address Management, & Directory Services

QUESTION 13 “Enterprise Back-Office Services,”

“Provide centralized Back-Office Services that focus on infrastructure systems supporting office automation and collaborative services.”


Question: Is there a pre-defined set of applications currently in place to support collaborative services?

RESPONSE:

There is not a pre-defined set of applications supporting collaborative services. Some office automation applications and services may be used by customers to support their collaborative services needs.
QUESTION 14 “Enterprise Back-Office Services,”

“Decommission services and associated servers consistent with transfer of Center supported services to Agency services.”


Question: Does GSFC have a decommissioning process as part of change management already?  From the above statement they are asking for the offeror to define the lifecycle mgmt processes.

RESPONSE: NASA/GSFC is expecting that the Offeror shall define an approach to meet the stated objectives.

QUESTION 15 “Program Management and Common Support,”

Question: Will the offeror have direct and periodic access to the Information Management Council (IMC) for reporting needs?

RESPONSE: 

The successful contractor will not have direct access to the IMC. The Government will determine the appropriate reporting channels for the successful contractor to follow post-award.     
QUESTION 16

RTO 1 states that the Service Desk will receive 5000 calls per week. The metrics provided in the GUEST library and operational documents from the June 23 conference specify a current call volume of 8433 per month and a user base of 8000. Please clarify which figures should be used to respond to RTO 1. If the 5000/week figure represents an expected ramp up to the higher call volume, over what period of time does the government anticipate it will take? 

RESPONSE: The RTO is a hypothetical task description, and the Offeror shall respond to the RTO as described.  The information provided during the June 23 Industry Day was a real snapshot of the past month’s volume. The RTOs are designed to be representative of the work expected under the contract and are meant to provide a common basis for Offerors to propose against.
QUESTION 17  If the effective date of the contract is likely to be April 1, is that the date on which transition begins or is that the end of the transition period and the start of full operational support from the incoming contractor. How long is the transition expected to be? 

RESPONSE: The Phase-in Period (Transition period) is anticipated to begin 30 days prior to the effective task order period.  The effective contract/task order is anticipated to begin April 1.

QUESTION 18
Would other support groups use the Remedy tool to update and open tickets? If so, we need an estimate of how many support people would need access to the system. Also, would we be responsible for training those non-helpdesk people on the Remedy tool use? Inventory? 

RESPONSE: 
The SOOs do not define a specific vendor solution for help desk software.  The Solicitation does not state that NASA/GSFC is moving to a Remedy solution.

QUESTION 19
It looks like customer satisfaction surveying is required. Is there a requirement for the percentage of tickets which must be surveyed? 

RESPONSE: The Government expects the Offeror to propose an approach to surveying customer satisfaction.

QUESTION 20
The RFP section on Knowledge Management specifies an objective : “Goal 4 -Institutionalize Inside NASA as the enterprise portal to provide universal, secure access for the entire Agency.” Does this mean that the Remedy Knowledge tool (or some other tool) must be made available via the portal? If so, who is responsible for that systems integration work? 

RESPONSE :
The SOOs do not define a specific vendor solution for help desk software.  The Solicitation does not state that NASA/GSFC is moving to a Remedy solution.

QUESTION 21
Does GSFC have automated password reset tools (self service) or any other self help tools today?  
RESPONSE: Yes, GSFC does have automated password reset tools available for customer use. The Agency which provides enterprise directory services for all Centers provides an automated password reset mechanism. Additionally, the ODIN service provider offerors an automated password reset application to all customers.
QUESTION 22
Section L; Subfactor C: Integrated Management Plan (IMP):

a) Is the IMP the Management Approach?

b) If not, is the IMP to be delivered with proposal or within XX days of award?

c) If not, is the IMP included in page count?

d) Is the IMP going to be put on contract at contract award? 

RESPONSE:
a) No

b) Deliver with the proposal

c) Yes

d) No

QUESTION 23. The requirement to prepare a detailed PWS, WBS, SLA's, QAP and integrate/cross-check the details of those components for a program the size of GUEST is quite a lengthy process.  With questions due on the 18th and our proposal schedule requiring a full day production we respectfully request an extension of two weeks subsequent to all the answers to questions being posted. 

RESPONSE: All questions are due on September 18, 2008. RFP Proposals due date has been extended to October 9, 2008, Proposals are due at 2:00PM, EST, on that day..
QUESTION 24. The RTOs represent four detailed proposals with detailed basis of estimates and their own SLA's.  Please consider excluding the page count for SLA's. 

RESPOSNE:  SLAs are submitted as part of the Performance Work Statement.  The Performance Work Statement is excluded from the page count.
QUESTION 25. We request that the Integrated Management Plan become a transition deliverable upon award of contract.  There does not appear to be much value in preparing an IMP that does not capture the granularity of understanding of the Code 700 organization that can only be accomplished (other than the

incumbent) by performance of in-depth interviews that occur naturally in the phase-in. 

RESPONSE:

The Government has determined that providing an Integrated Management Plan as part of the proposal submission is necessary because it illustrates the interaction between the contractor and Government. The IMP is due with the RFP Proposal.
QUESTION 26. REFERENCE: Section B.4, explains that this will be a Fixed Price Incentive Fee contract and the elements include:   The target cost of this contract is $ (To be negotiated on each individual Task Order).  The Target profit of this contract is $ (To be negotiated on each individual Task Order).  The target price (target cost plus target profit) of this contract is $ (To be negotiated on each individual Task Order).  The ceiling price is $ TBD [The ceiling price to be negotiated in each individual Task Order shall not exceed 125% of the Target Cost].  It then further advises that the cost sharing for target cost underruns is:

Government  80 %      Contractor  20 %.

The cost sharing for target cost overruns is:

Government  60 %      Contractor  40 %.

Additionally it is identified that the Total Target Profit proposed under each individual task order shall be apportioned 50 percent to the Price Incentive (Clause B.4) and 50 percent to the Performance Incentive (Clause H.13).

QUESTION: After reviewing FAR 16.403, please advise how will a determination of the final incentive fee be made?  Is a profit adjustment formula to be negotiated with each RTO and if so what is an example of such a formula given the apportionment between price and performance?  While there is an expectation that if there is an underrun and performance meets task requirements the contractor would receive 100% of the incentive fee, how does an overrun impact the fee?  This information is necessary for the proper formulation of pricing the RTOs and calculating Target Profit. 

RESPONSE: 
a. At the end of each Task Order the Government will  negotiate the  final cost for  each  individual task order , determine the  amount of the overrun  or underrun  experienced, and utilize the established share ratios to  calculate the final  task order price.  The performance incentive is determined based on the technical performance achieved against the negotiated task order performance metrics.
b. The Pre-solicitation Presentation posted on June 25, 2008 provides definition and example formulas for cost overrun and underrun on slides 20 - 25.  The overrun only impacts the Price incentive which is half of the proposed incentive profit.
c. When the final cost of a task order is more than the task's negotiated target cost (i.e., an overrun), application of the overrun share ratio/formula will result in a final profit less than the task order target profit, or even a net loss. If the final negotiated task order cost exceeds the task's price ceiling, the contractor absorbs the difference as a loss.  
QUESTION 27. REFERENCE: In accordance with Section L.14, paragraph 2c, Offerors shall complete Exhibit C-2 for each of the four Representative Task Orders, by WBS, by contract year; starting at WBS Level 3 (e.g., 1.1, 1.2, 2.1, 2.2, etc.) and then summarizing at each higher WBS level (Level 2 – 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, etc. and Level 1 – Total RTO).  In this exhibit, Offerors shall include all prices (direct labor, other direct costs, incentive fee and ceiling price) associated with performing the RTO.   Offerors shall use the “not to exceed” rates proposed in Attachment C for pricing all RTOs.

The resultant contract will be a Fixed Price Incentive (FPI), Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) type contract.  Offerors shall submit a price proposal for each RTO consistent with their technical approach described in Mission Suitability Subfactor B and the cost sharing ratios specified below.  Offerors are free to propose whatever profit percentage is appropriate.

QUESTION: Please verify that contractors can propose separate and distinct profit percentages and percentages for each ceiling price for the individual RTO’s under the solicitation.

RESPONSE:  The proposed profit  and  ceiling price percentages for task RTOs are not separate and distinct.  Each RTO shallt have  the same profit percentage or ceiling percentage.  Offerors may propose a lower ceiling, which is consistently applied to all RTOs.   The proposed percentages are for all RTOs will be the maximum proposed rates/percentages disclosed in Attachment C.   
QUESTION 28. REFERENCE: Please clarify the WBS structure, as presented in Section L.14, paragraph 2c: Offerors shall complete Exhibit C-2 for each of the four Representative Task Orders, by WBS, by contract year; starting at WBS Level 3 (e.g., 1.1, 1.2, 2.1, 2.2, etc.) and then summarizing at each higher WBS level (Level 2 – 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, etc. and Level 1 – Total RTO).  

QUESTION: In this fashion contract year 3 for RTO 26 would have a WBS of 26.3.  Our concern is to be clear that WBS Level 1 is the contract level and is not to be read as “Total RTO” as meaning “Total for individual RTO.”  Accordingly, we believe the instructions read as follows:

WBS Level 1 = 1 = ALL RTOs SUMMARY (Contract?)

WBS Level 2 = WBS 1.0 – 99.0 = INDIVIDUAL RTOs (Individual RTO totals)

WBS Level 3 = WBS 1.1 – 99.5 = RTO broken down by contract year

RESPONSE:  WBS Level 1 is the Contract Level; WBS Level 2 is the Task Order Level, WBS Level 3 is the sub-task order level.  

QUESTION 29. REFERENCE: Exhibit C-10 states; Significant Subcontractor Direct Labor Rate Detail – ONSITE; Exhibit C-10-A Significant Subcontractor Direct Labor Rate Detail – OFFSITE; and Exhibit C-10-B Significant Subcontractor Direct Labor Hours and Costs; 

QUESTION: Although not instructed specifically to do so, please clarify that we are to make copies of each of these worksheets for each year of the contract for submission in the Pricing Volume.  Is that a correct assumption?

RESPONSE:  Yes, specify the contract year in the Cell Row 5
QUESTION 30. Please confirm that the SOO presented in the Final RFP addresses all current “Core” (i.e., non-IDIQ) work performed under the BASE contract. 

RESPONSE: The GUEST procurement is the follow-on for BASE; current “core” requirements under the BASE contract align with the GUEST Statement of Objectives.  The specific tasks to be performed will be executed after contract award.  How the work is to be performed is based on the Offeror’s PWS. 
QUESTION 31.  Is it the Government’s intention that the GUEST contractor will be responsible to ensure performance and availability of just desktop applications developed, or sustained, under GUEST and also for other office automation applications?  For example, as is currently done under the ODIN contract. 

RESPONSE: The offerors are not responsible for ensuring the performance and availability of office automation software applications currently done under the ODIN contract vehicle.
QUESTION 32.  The SOO uses the term ‘enterprise’ to describe many functions (test environment, system administration, hosting, etc.).  Is it anticipated that these enterprise services will support all of GSFC?  If so, what is the plan and schedule for achieving enterprise-wide (GSFC) coverage?  

RESPONSE: Yes, the services will support all of GSFC. The Government expects that the offerors will propose a plan to achieve enterprise-wide coverage for the services outlined in the RFP. 
QUESTION 33.  What is the distinction between SOO 6.1.3, Enterprise System Administration, and SOO 6.8, Server and Systems Administration?

RESPONSE: There is not a difference. They are the same.
QUESTION 34.  In RTO One, does ITCD anticipate that the enterprise call center will take tier one calls for the IEM support center?  If so, will the 65% first call resolution still be a requirement?  

RESPONSE: The RTOs are hypothetical. Actual tasks will be issued with specific metrics and outcomes that must be achieved.
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